Yale University Library Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Guide to the Florine and Ettie Stettheimer Papers

YCAL MSS 20



by Ellen Zak Danforth

September 1987

P. O. Box 208330 New Haven, CT 06520-8330 (203) 432-2977 beinecke.library@yale.edu/ http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	3
Requesting Instructions	
Administrative Information	
Immediate Source of Acquisition	
Conditions Governing Access	
Conditions Governing Use	
Preferred Citation	
Separated Materials	
FLORINE STETTHEIMER (1871-1944)	
ETTIE STETTHEIMER (1875-1955)	4
Scope and Contents	
Collection Contents	
Series I: Correspondence, 1898-1954	
Series II: Diaries, 1906-1944	
FLORINE STETTHEIMER	
ETTIE STETTHEIMER	
Series III: Writings, 1910-1949	
FLORINE STETTHEIMER	
ETTIE STETTHEIMER	
Series IV: Other Papers, 1907-1974	
FOUR SAINTS IN THREE ACTS	
STETTHEIMER PAINTINGS	
MISCELLANEOUS MATERIAL	. 14
OVERSIZE	. 15
Selected Search Terms	16

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY: Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library

P.O. Box 208330

New Haven, CT 06520-8330

(203) 432-2977

beinecke.library@yale.edu http://beinecke.library.yale.edu/

CALL NUMBER: YCAL MSS 20

CREATOR: Stettheimer, Florine, 1871-1944

TITLE: Florine and Ettie Stettheimer papers

DATES: 1898-1974 (inclusive)

BULK DATES: 1906–1953

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 4 linear feet (11 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

SUMMARY: The papers contain correspondence, diaries, writings, materials related to

the production of Four Saints in Three Acts and the paintings of Florine

Stettheimer, and miscellaneous papers.

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: https://

hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.stetthe

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use in the Beinecke Library reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/beinecke.stetthe.

To order reproductions from this collection, please send an email with the call number, box number(s), and folder number(s) to beinecke.images@yale.edu.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

The Stettheimer Papers were donated to The Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library by Ettie Stettheimer from 1951-1954, by David McKibbin in 1956, and by Joseph Solomon in 1955, 1967 and 1979.

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research.

Conditions Governing Use

The Florine and Ettie Stettheimer Papers are the physical property of the Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Yale University. Literary rights, including copyright, belong to the authors or their literary heirs or assigns. For further information, consult the appropriate curator.

Preferred Citation

Florine and Ettie Stettheimer Papers. Yale Collection of American Literature, Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library.

Separated Materials

Two paintings,"Portrait of Joseph Hergesheimer" (1923) and "Studio Party (or Soiree)" (ca. 1915), were transferred permanently to the Yale University Art Gallery in 2019. See: Yale University Art Gallery, accession numbers 1947.249 and 1973.95.14.

FLORINE STETTHEIMER (1871-1944)

Florine Stettheimer, born on August 19, 1871, and Henrietta (Ettie) Stettheimer, born on July 31, 1875, in Rochester, New York, were two of the three Stettheimer sisters who, from 1915 to 1941, presided over one of New York City's most cosmopolitan salons. Florine was a painter, Ettie an author, and Carrie, the third sister, created a dollhouse, famous for its miniature art works made especially for it by important artists of the period. The three sisters never married. They lived with their mother, Rosetta Walter Stettheimer, until her death in 1935, fiercely protective of one another because their father had abandoned the family. Florine, Ettie and Carrie Stettheimer had an older sister, Stella, and a brother, Walter, both of whom, after their marriages, moved to California.

Florine studied art from 1892 to 1895 at the Art Students League of New York. In the early 1900s Florine, her sisters, and their mother lived in Europe. Florine studied art in Italy, Spain, France, Germany, and Switzerland. The four Stettheimers returned to New York in 1915.

In 1916 Florine had a one person exhibition at M. Knoedler and Co. Gallery and although she exhibited paintings in later shows, she never had another solo exhibition. During this same period, she wrote a ballet, *Orphee of the Four Arts*, which interested the dancer Adolphe Bolm, but was not produced.

During her lifetime, Florine was best known for designing the stagesets and costumes for Gertrude Stein and Virgil Thomson's opera *Four Saints in Three Acts* (1934). Only her family and friends like Carl Van Vechten, Marsden Hartley, Marcel Duchamp, Alfred Stieglitz, Pavel Tchelitchew, Carl Sprinchorn, and Henry McBride knew much about her paintings. Florine generally painted alone and never allowed anyone to see her works until they were finished. The paintings, usually portraits, were "unveiled" at parties hosted by Carrie, who was known for her elaborate meals.

Florine became ill in 1942 and died May 11, 1944 in New York Hospital. Carrie died just six weeks later.

ETTIE STETTHEIMER (1875-1955)

Henrietta Walter Stettheimer graduated from Barnard in 1896 and received an M.A. in psychology in 1898. In 1908 Ettie received her Ph.D. in philosophy from the University of Freiburg. Under the pseudonym Henrie Waste, she published two novels, *Philosophy*, (1917) and *Love Days*, (1923).

Ettie was the most outgoing and the most flirtatious of the sisters. She guided the conversation and was the intellectual focus of the gatherings, held at the Stettheimer's West 85th Street residence, Alwyn Court;

their summer home, "Andre Brook," in Tarrytown; and the Beaux Arts building on Sixth Avenue, where Florine had her studio.

After 1930 Ettie wrote little except letters. Following the deaths of Florine and Carrie, Ettie spent her remaining years attending to her sisters' affairs. She gave Carrie's doll house to the Museum of the City of New York and distributed Florine's paintings among the nation's most important art museums. Ettie approved several posthumous exhibitions of Florine's work and in 1949 published a book of Florine's poems, which Carl Van Vechten titled *Crystal Flowers*. Finally, in 1951, Ettie published her own *Memorial Volume* which contained her previously published *Philosophy* and *Love Days*, her dissertation on William James, and four short stories. Ettie Stettheimer died on June 1, 1955 in New York City.

For additional information, see *Florine Stettheimer: A Life in Art* by Parker Tyler (1963) and *Florine Stettheimer: Still Lifes, Portraits, and Pageants* by Elisabeth Sussman (1980).

Scope and Contents

The Florine and Ettie Stettheimer Papers document the lives and careers of the Stettheimer sisters, who presided over an early twentieth-century New York City salon. The papers span the dates 1898-1974 but the bulk of the material covers the period 1906-53.

The Papers consist of four series: I. Correspondence (Boxes 1-5); II. Diaries (Boxes 6-7); III. Writings (Box 8), divided into two sections, Florine Stettheimer and Ettie Stettheimer; and IV. Other Papers (Boxes 9-10), divided into three sections, material related to Four Saints in Three Acts, material related to Florine Stettheimer's Paintings, and Miscellaneous Material. Oversize material is located in Box 11.

The alphabetically arranged <u>correspondence in Series I</u> concerns the painting career of Florine Stettheimer, Ettie Stettheimer's writing career, and their respective friendships with the artistic elite of the day. Only correspondence deemed "harmless" by Ettie was saved (See Ettie's note preceding the correspondence in Box 5, folder 88); she destroyed the rest (see also Donald Gallup's letter dated August 29, 1952). Of the material that remains, much has been quoted in *Florine Stettheimer: A Life In Art* (1963) by Parker Taylor and *Florine Stettheimer: Still Lifes Portraits*, and *Pageants* (1980) by Elisabeth Sussman. A close examination of the papers, however, reveals a portrait of the Stettheimer sisters and their circle of friends that has more depth to it than what has so far been published.

One unidentified letter from "Billy" (Box 5, folder 108), for example, noted as "very personal" by Ettie, survives. It concerns a misunderstanding about the frames Florine had made for her paintings. In another letter dated February 2, 1942 (Box 3, folder 59), the New Art Circle petitioned Florine to join the "well-known art collectors and personalities in the art and theatrical world" by lending one of her paintings to a benefit exhibition. Florine replied, "I am not a collector of paintings." Florine also revealed her ambivalence about the future disposal of her work in an undated letter to Kirk Askew (Box 1, folder 2).

Ettie's forthrightness is evident in a letter to the Museum of the City of New York, in which she is "heartsick" over the lighting on Carrie's doll house, and she does not always agree with even her closest friends. In an exchange with Alfred Stieglitz they argue over the contents of one of his exhibitions. A hint of intimacy is preserved in the correspondence between Ettie and Elie Nadelman but in one undated letter to him she returns one of his etchings. There is also some interesting correspondence in folder 27 about a public letter Ettie wrote to Dashiell Hammett which was published in the *New Leader*, on June 7, 1941.

Except for the Stettheimer family letters and some letters from various artists, most of the correspondence is Ettie's. It is typically about some aspect of her writing. Topics include the publication and content of her novels, *Philosophy* (1917) and *Love Days* (1923), and her *Memorial Volume* (1951). There are many condolence letters after Florine's death, correspondence concerning the disposition of Florine's painting, and a good deal of "thank-yous" for *Crystal Flowers*, the anthology of Florine's poems that Ettie had printed and privately distributed to "Florine's friends and the friends of her paintings."

The letters that chronicle Stettheimer friendships reveal much about the various artists, writers, dancers, and intellectuals of the period. Although Florine met Pavel Tchelitchew late in her life, this correspondence shows a close friendship. The Stettheimers's friendship with Alfred Stieglitz and Georgia O'Keeffe is also

well documented, as is the relationship between Stieglitz and O'Keeffe. Florine's portrait of Stieglitz was a great curiosity for both of them and in a letter to Florine dated Thanksgiving night, 1928, Stieglitz mused on the nature of portraits in general.

Leo Stein was the only one of Ettie's correspondents to criticize her *Love Days* (October 31, 1923) and he was frank in his views of modern art and artists such as Marcel Duchamp and Maurice Sterne. Yet, on December 13, 1932, he admits that "like everyone else, I've taken to painting." Although Carl Sprinchorn corresponds with Florine at first, most of his letters are addressed to Ettie. He writes of the progress in his work and the frustration he experiences trying to sell his paintings. Ettie sends him money very Christmas and encourages him in his artistic pursuits.

The friendship and professional collaboration between Virgil Thomson and Florine is well-documented, but the letters in this collection fail to show its depth. The same is true for the correspondence of Henry McBride. The Carl Van Vechten material, however, is more well-rounded.

Robert Locher sent Christmas cards with drawings by Charles Demuth to the Stettheimer sisters for eight years and, enclosed in one of Locher's letters, is a manuscript about Florine in Demuth's hand. Notable single letters in the series include a letter from Adolph Bolm's wife Beatrice about his death (June 6, 1951) and a June 13, 1944 poem-letter from e.e. cummings (Box 1, folder 14).

The Stettheimer family correspondence is found in Box 5, folders 88-91. It consists of letters from Florine to her mother and sisters written during periods of separation. In one October 5, 1916 letter, for example, Florine describes the arrangements for her exhibition at Knoedler's Gallery and Adolphe Bolm's reaction to her ballet. In a letter from December 10, 1922 she mentions the tea she hosted to show off her portrait of Carl Van Vechten. The 1934 letters from Hartford describe preparations for and the opening of *Four Saints in Three Acts*.

Series II, Diaries, fills Boxes 6-7 of the Stettheimer Papers and includes the journals of both Florine and Ettie. All were censored by Ettie and they include notations, in her hand, explaining some of the entries. Florine's diaries begin in 1906 and end two years before her death. She records her ideas and feelings about the "Old Masters" on her visits to European churches, museums, and palaces and "impersonal impressions" of her travels. Some of the diaries document events at home and at her studio. The 1935 diary was written during a visit to California before the death of her mother. The later entries concern her illness.

Ettie's diaries are incomplete. They begin in 1916 and end in 1924. The diaries, often in the form of letters to Florine and others, consist of edited and typed extracts from her journals. Ettie explained that she edited her journals because they were not good examples of her work.

Series III, Writings is divided into sections containing Florine and Ettie Stettheimer's works. Florine's writings consist of poems found by Ettie after Florine's death and published in *Crystal Flowers* (1949). The poems, mostly undated, are in Florine's hand. They are foldered by chapters with Ettie's 1949 transcripts in folders 133-41. Some chapters, as Ettie noted, retain Florine's titles, and others have Ettie's. The titles indicate the subjects, "Nursery Rhymes," "Nature, Fauna, Flora," "Americana," "Moods," "People," "Notes to Friends," and "As Tho' From a Diary." A manuscript of Florine's ballet, *Orphee of the Four Arts*, is found in folder 142. Undated and in Florine's hand, it includes some original sketches.

Ettie's writings are located in the second section of the series. There are no typescripts of any of her published works. The contract with Alfred A. Knopf Inc. for *Love Days* is housed in folder 145. Ettie's other writings, in folders 143-44 and 147, consist of a 1910 book review, and two unpublished papers, "Whitewashing President Wilson in the German Press," and "The Objectivity of History and the Problem of Value." The typescript of Ettie's "Forward" to *Crystal Flowers* is located in folder 146.

Series IV, Other Papers, is divided into four sections. Material related to Florine's work on Four Saints in Three Acts can be found in the first section, in folders 148-58 and in the Oversize Box 11, folders 181-82. The papers include her notes on the difficulties she had with the scenic production, photographs of the working sets, photographs of the production, theater programs and play bills (including the original premiere edition), reviews, and the score for "Pigeons on the Grass Alas."

The second section contains material related to Florine's paintings. Folders 159-70 hold articles by Carl Van Vechten, Marsden Hartley, Paul Rosenfeld, Henry McBride, Parker Tyler, and Glenway Wescott. This section also includes reviews of Florine's exhibitions, exhibition catalogs, and invitations to the openings.

Miscellaneous items are located in the third section. Virgil Thompson's musical portrait of Florine is included, together with menus by Carrie Stettheimer and items related to her doll house, and Carl Van Vechten's photographs of the Stettheimer home, Virgil Thomson, and Gaston Lachaise. Folders 177-78 contain Ettie's "Theater Record" scrapbooks for 1907-09. The collection ends with two folders of oversize photographs of the stage sets for *Four Saints in Three Acts*.

There is additional Stettheimer material in the printed collection at The Beinecke Rare Book and Manuscript Library. The Library also owns one of Florine's paintings: "Birthday Bouquet for Carl Van Vechten." Three additional paintings, "Portrait of Joseph Hergesheimer" (1923), "Portrait of Carl Van Vechten" (1922), and "Studio Party (or Soiree)" (ca. 1915), were transferred permanently to the Yale University Art Gallery in 2019.

Collection Contents

Series I: Correspondence, 1898-1954

2 linear feet (5 boxes)

The correspondence in Series I is arranged alphabetically by correspondent. Unidentified correspondence is placed at the end of the series.

b. 1, f. 1-2	"A" general	1925-54, n.d.
b. 1, f. 3	Ackerman, Phyliss	1940-41
b. 1, f. 4	American Society of Painters, Sculptors and Gravers	1930-36, n.d.
b. 1, f. 5	Austin, "Chick" See also: Wadsworth Atheneum, Box 5, folder 105	1930-49
b. 1, f. 6-7	"B" general	1922-51
b. 1, f. 8	Bernheimer, Louis	1922, n.d.
b. 1, f. 9	Best-Maugard, Adolpfo	1928-29, n.d.
b. 1, f. 10	Birnbaum. Martin	1925-54
b. 1, f. 11	Bolm, Adolphe	1935, 1951, n.d.
b. 1, f. 11	Bolm, Beatrice	
b. 1, f. 12	Brooks, Van Wyck	1951
b. 1, f. 13-14	"C" general	1916-52, n.d.
b. 1, f. 15	Cahill, Holger	1934, 1939, n.d.
b. 1, f. 16	Cleveland Museum of Art	1947-49
b. 1 , f. 17	Crowninshield, Frank	1923-28
b. 1, f. 18	"D" general	1921-51
b. 1, f. 19-20	Duchamp, Marcel	1917-46, n.d.
b. 1, f. 21	Eastman, Ida Ruah	1951, n.d.
b. 1, f. 22	Eliot, Ethel	1913-15, n.d.
b. 1, f. 22	Eliot, Sam	
b. 1, f. 23	"F" general	1950-51, n.d.
b. 2, f. 24	"G" general	1923-51, n.d.
b. 2, f. 25	Gallup, Donald See also: Yale University Library, Box 5, folder 106	1947-53
b. 2, f. 26	"H" general	1923-49

b. 2, f. 27	Hammett, Dashiell	1941-51
b. 2, f. 28	Hartley, Marsden	1931
b. 2, f. 29	Hartman, Bertram	1926-50
b. 2, f. 30	Hellman, Geoffry	1934-49
b. 2, f. 31	Hopwood, Avery	1923, n.d.
b. 2, f. 32	James, William	1909 May 26
b. 2, f. 33	Johnson, Willard ("Spud")	1925-50, n.d.
b. 2, f. 34	"K" general	1924-50
b. 2, f. 35	Kenton, Edna	1923-49
b. 2, f. 36	Knopf, Alfred	1923-53
b. 2, f. 37	Kuniyoshi, Yasuo	1924, n.d.
b. 2, f. 38	"L" general	1934-49, n.d.
b. 2, f. 39	LaChaise, Gaston; LaChaise, Isabel	1921-1954
b. 2, f. 40	Littel, Philip	1923-43, n.d.
b. 2, f. 41	Locher, Robert See also: Charles Demuth, Box 1, folder 18	1918-49, n.d.
	See also. Charles bethath, box 1, folder to	
b. 2, f. 42-43	Lovett, Robert Morss	1923-54
b. 2, f. 42-43 b. 2, f. 44		1923-54 1934-52
	Lovett, Robert Morss	
b. 2, f. 44	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom	1934-52
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry	1934-52 1944-53
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L.	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d.
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S.	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d.
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51 b. 3, f. 52-53	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S. Moeller, Philip	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d. 1913-54 1930-52, n.d.
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51 b. 3, f. 52-53 b. 3, f. 54	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S. Moeller, Philip Moore, Marianne	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d. 1913-54 1930-52, n.d. 1949-51, n.d.
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51 b. 3, f. 52-53 b. 3, f. 54 b. 3, f. 55-57	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S. Moeller, Philip Moore, Marianne Museum of Modern Art	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d. 1913-54 1930-52, n.d. 1949-51, n.d.
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51 b. 3, f. 52-53 b. 3, f. 54 b. 3, f. 55-57 b. 3, f. 58	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S. Moeller, Philip Moore, Marianne Museum of Modern Art Museum of the City of New York	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d. 1913-54 1930-52, n.d. 1949-51, n.d. 1934-53
b. 2, f. 44 b. 3, f. 45-47 b. 3, f. 48 b. 3, f. 49 b. 3, f. 50 b. 3, f. 51 b. 3, f. 52-53 b. 3, f. 54 b. 3, f. 55-57 b. 3, f. 58 b. 3, f. 59	Lovett, Robert Morss Mabry, Tom McBride, Henry McKibbin, David Metropolitan Museum of Art Mencken, H. L. Miller, Dickenson S. Moeller, Philip Moore, Marianne Museum of Modern Art Museum of the City of New York "N-O" general	1934-52 1944-53 1948-54 1951-53 1926, n.d. 1913-54 1930-52, n.d. 1949-51, n.d. 1934-53 1952 1932-54 1918, [1946?],

b. 4, f. 64	Overbury, Bertha	1950-52, n.d.
b. 4, f. 65	"P" general	1917-49, n.d.
b. 4, f. 66	Poirier, Irene	1948-51
b. 4, f. 67	"R" general	1932-51, n.d.
b. 4, f. 68	Rée, Max	1936-51, n.d.
b. 4, f. 69	Reimers, Paul	1926, n.d.
b. 4, f. 70	Robinot [art packer and mover]	1922-23
b. 4, f. 71	Roditi, Edouard	1934, 1938, n.d.
b. 4, f. 72	Rosenberg, James See also: W. G. Constable Box 1, folder 14	1946-48
b. 4, f. 73	Rosenfeld, Paul	1937-45
b. 4, f. 74	"S" general	1928-50
b. 4, f. 75	Saul, Milton	1951-54
b. 4, f. 76	Seligman, Herbert J.	1924-51
b. 4, f. 77	Simonson, Lee	1927-29
b. 4, f. 78	Smith College Museum of Art	1949-51
b. 4, f. 79-81	Sprinchorn, Carl	1927-53, n.d.
b. 4, f. 82	Sprinchorn, Joel E.	1898, n.d.
b. 4, f. 83	Steichen, Edward	n.d.
b. 4, f. 84-86	Stein, Leo	1916-34, n.d.
b. 4, f. 87	Sterne, Maurice	1919, 1949, n.d.
b. 5, f. 88-91	Stettheimer family	1901-38, n.d.
b. 5, f. 92-93	Stieglitz, Alfred	1924-44, n.d.
b. 5, f. 94	"T" general	1930-49
b. 5, f. 95-96	Tchelitchew, Pavel	1936-43
b. 5, f. 97-98	Thomson, Virgil	1933-50, n.d.
b. 5, f. 99	"U" general	1934-51, n.d.
b. 5, f. 100	"V" general	1934-51
b. 5, f. 101-03	Van Vechten, Carl	1917-53
b. 5, f. 104	"W" general	1934-49, n.d.

b. 5, f. 105	Wadsworth Athenuem	1947-49
b. 5, f. 106	Yale University Library	1947-53
b. 5, f. 107	"Z" general	1934, n.d.
b. 5, f. 108	Unidentified	1916-34

Series II: Diaries, 1906-1944

0.75 linear feet (2 boxes)

Boxes 6-7 hold Series II, *Diaries*, which is divided into two chronologically arranged sections, *Florine Stettheimer*, and *Ettie Stettheimer*.

FLORINE STETTHEIMER

b. 6, f. 109-11	<u>Diary</u>	1906–10
b. 6, f. 112-114	<u>Diary</u>	1912-24
b. 6, f. 115-17	<u>Diary</u>	1925-37
b. 6, f. 118-20	<u>Diary</u>	1938-39
b. 7, f. 121-22	<u>Diary</u>	1940
b. 7, f. 123-24	<u>Diary</u>	1941-42 Nov
b. 7, f. 125-26	<u>Diary</u>	1942 Dec, n.d.
	ETTIE STETTHEIMER	
b. 7, f. 127-29	<u>Diary</u>	1916-18
b. 7, f. 130-32	<u>Diary</u>	1919-24

Series III: Writings, 1910-1949

0.25 linear feet (1 box)

Box 8 holds Series III, Writings, which is divided into two sections, Florine Stettheimer and Ettie Stettheimer. Each section is arranged alphabetically by title.

FLORINE STETTHEIMER

b. 8, f. 133-41	<u>Crystal Flowers</u>	1917-49, n.d.	
b. 8, f. 142	Orphee of the Four Acts	n.d.	
ETT	ETTIE STETTHEIMER		
b. 8, f. 143	Crystal Flowers: foreword, carbon typescript	1949	
b. 8, f. 144	Love Days contract with Alfred A. Knopf, Inc. (Photography-Likeness of heroine, Susanna Moore)	1922 Jul 22, n.d.	
b. 8, f. 145	"The Objectivity of History and the Problem of Value:" typescript	n.d.	
b. 8, f. 146	"The Right to Believe" in <i>The Journal of Philosophy, Psychology and Scientific Methods</i> : copy from negative microfilm	1910	
b. 8, f. 147	"Whitewashing President Wilson in German Press"	1918	

Series IV: Other Papers, 1907-1974

0.75 linear feet (2 boxes)

Boxes 9-11 hold Series IV. Other Papers, which is divided into three sections, Four Saints in Three Acts, Stettheimer Paintings, and Miscellaneous Material. All sections are arranged alphabetically by type of material or by author.

FOUR SAINTS IN THREE ACTS

b. 9, f. 148	Notes on scenic production Floorplans: Avery Memorial Theater stage	n.d.
b. 9, f. 149	Photographs of puppet sets See also: Box 11, folders 181-82	n.d.
b. 9, f. 150	Photographs of principal actors by Carl Van Vechten See also: Box 11, folders 181-82	1934 Mar 9
b. 9, f. 151	Printed material	1934-49, n.d.
b. 9, f. 152-56	Reviews	1934 Mar-May
b. 9, f. 157	Score for "Pigeons on the Grass Alas"	1935
b. 9, f. 158	Theater programs	1934, 1952
ST	ETTHEIMER PAINTINGS	
b. 9, f. 159	Copy of "Cathedrals of Art:" published in View	1944
b. 9, f. 160	Copy of "West Point:" cover of Town & Country	1945 May
b. 9, f. 161	Exhibition reviews, catalogs, and invitations	1916-51, n.d.
b. 9, f. 162	Hartley, Marsden: "The Painting of Florine Stettheimer," Creative Art	1931 Jul
b. 9, f. 163	McBride, Henry: "Florine Stettheimer: A Reminiscence," View	1945 Oct 3
b. 9, f. 164	McBride, Henry: "Artist in the Drawing Room," Town & Country	1946 Dec
b. 9, f. 165	Rosenfeld, Paul: "The World of Florine Stettheimer," The Nation	1932 May 4
b. 9, f. 166	Rosenfeld, Paul: "Florine Stettheimer," Accent See also: Box 4, folder 73	1945
b. 9, f. 167	Tyler, Parker: "Stettheimer," View	1946 Dec
b. 9, f. 168	Van Vechten, Carl: "Pastiches and Pastaches," The Reviewer	1922 Feb
b. 9, f. 169	Van Vechten, Carl: "The World of Florine Stettheimer," Harper's Bazaar	1946 Oct
b. 9, f. 170	Wescott, Glenway: "Stettheimer: A Reply," Art News	1947 Jan
MISCELLANEOUS MATERIAL		
b. 10 , f. 171	Musical portrait of Florine Stettheimer by Virgil Thomson	1943
b. 10, f. 172	Dollhouse: information about	1947, 1974, n.d.

MISCELLANEOUS MATERIAL (continued)

b. 10, f. 173	Menus designed by Carrie Stettheimer	1929-34, n.d.
b. 10, f. 174-176	Photographs of Alwyn Court and the Stettheimer's friends by Carl Van Vechten	1932-44, n.d.
b. 10, f. 177-178	Scrapbooks: "Theater Records of Ettie Stettheimer"	1907-09
b. 10, f. 179	Photograph of Ettie Stettheimer in academic cap and gown	n.d.
b. 10, f. 180	Photographs, unidentified	n.d.
OVERSIZE		
b. 11, f. 181-82	Photographs of stage sets for Four Saints in Three Acts	1934 Mar 10, n.d.

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Art, Modern -- 20th Century
Art criticism
Art -- Exhibitions
Artists -- United States
Art museums
Ballets -- Stories, plots, etc.
Books -- Reviews
Costume
Poetry
Portrait painting
Salons -- New York (State) -- New York
Theater -- Reviews
Theaters -- Stage-setting and scenery

Geographic Names

New York (N.Y.) -- Intellectual life

Genres / Formats

Diaries -- United States Exhibition catalogues Playbills

Names

Balm, Adolphe Demuth, Charles, 1883-1935 Duchamp, Marcel, 1887-1968 Hammett, Dashiell, 1894-1961 Hartley, Marsden, 1877-1943 James, William, 1842-1910 Lachaise, Gaston, 1882-1935 Locher, Robert McBride, Henry, 1867-1962 McKibbin, David Moeller, Philip, 1880-1958 Nadelman, Elie, 1882-1946 O'Keeffe, Georgia, 1887-1986 Rosenfeld, Paul, 1890-1946 Sprinchorn, Carl, 1887-1971 Steichen, Edward, 1879-1973 Stein, Leo, 1872-1947 Stettheimer, Ettie, 1875-1955 Stettheimer, Florine, 1871-1944 Stieglitz, Alfred, 1864-1946 Tchelitchew, Pavel, 1898-1957 Thomson, Virgil, 1896-1989 Thomson, Virgil, 1896-1989 (4 saints in 3 acts) Van Vechten, Carl, 1880-1964 Wescott, Glenway, 1901-1987

Families

Stettheimer family

Corporate Bodies

American Society of Painters, Sculptors, and Gravers Museum of Modern Art (New York, N.Y.) Museum of the City of New York